COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

By and Between

Coalition of Kaiser Permanente Unions AFL-CIO



and

Kaiser Coalition Staff Union CWA-WBNG Local 32035

Terms of Agreement February 1, 2020 - January 31, 2024

Coalition of Kaiser Permanente Unions, AFL-CIO and CWA-WBNG Local 32035 Effective February 1, 2020 – January 31, 2024

Table of Contents

Purpose Statement	3
Article 1- Recognition	3
Article 2 - Supervisor and Bargaining Unit Staff Complement	3
Article 3 - Union Security	3
Article 4 - Dues Check-off	4
Article 5 - COPE Check-off	4
Article 6 – Indemnification	4
Article 7 - Probationary Period	4
Article 8 - Management Rights	4
Article 9 - Employee Rights	5
Article 10 - Decision Making and Flexibility	5
Article 11 – Issue Resolution, Discipline, and Corrective Action	5
Article 12 – Benefits	6
Article 13 – PTO	7
Article 14 – Extended Sick Leave	8
Article 15 – Wages	9

Article 16 - Home Office	11
Article 17 - Travel Expenses	11
Article 18 - Employee Welfare	11
Article 19 - Work Schedules	11
Article 20 – Seniority, Vacancies, Reduction in Force, Recall	12
Article 21 - Grievance Procedure	15
Article 22 - Pre-Tax Shelter for Medical and Child Care Expenses	16
Article 23 - Temporary Employment	16
Article 24 - Employee Development, Training and Education	16
Article 25 – Leaves	17
Article 26 - Commute Benefit	17
Article 27 – Use of Equipment and Internet	18
Article 28 – Term	18
Article 29 - Living Agreement	18
Appendix A-C	19

This Agreement is made by and between the Coalition of Kaiser Permanente Unions, AFL-CIO (hereinafter Employer or Coalition) and CWA-WBNG Local 32035 (hereinafter Union)

Purpose Statement

The parties to this Agreement are committed to preserving the highest quality employment experience in the labor movement for the staff of the Coalition while at the same time recognizing that our jobs are unlike any other in the US Labor Movement. We are jointly committed to achieving National Agreement objectives and deliverables and the shared goals of the Labor Management Partnership; supporting the success of our Coalition unions; supporting the Coalition's constitution and bylaws; growing the Coalition; working to help lead Kaiser Permanente's success through health care reform; ensure full protection of the Labor Management Partnership; (hereinafter, "LMP") the Labor Management Partnership Trust Fund and the purpose and goals of Coalition funding sources; and all applicable laws and regulations.

Article 1 Recognition

The Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the collective bargaining agent representing the following employees who work directly for the Coalition and/or are directly accountable to the Coalition and who are not a member of another bargaining unit: Field National Coordinators, Program National Coordinators, Accountants, Meeting and Conference Planner and all future union eligible employees. Should new classifications be established, the Employer and the Union will meet to negotiate appropriate rates of pay for such classifications.

Article 2 Supervisor and Bargaining Unit Staff Complement

The parties to this Agreement agree to work together to establish an effective complement of Supervisory, Managerial, Confidential and Bargaining Unit positions, to effectively manage the Coalition.

Article 3 Union Security

All covered employees must, as a condition of continued employment, for each month after the first month of their employment, pay to the Union either membership dues or agency fees equal in amount to membership dues.

Article 4 Dues Check-off

The Coalition will deduct each pay period from the wages paid to any covered employee who authorizes it, the amount of Union dues and initiation fees, or agency fees specified by the Union.

Article 5 COPE Check-off

On receipt of the voluntary Political Contributions Checkoff Authorization form, the Coalition will deduct the specified amount from the wages paid to employees and will remit that amount to the AFL-CIO Committee on Political Education Political Contributions Committee (AFL-CIO COPE PCC).

Article 6 Indemnification

The Union will indemnify the Employer and hold it harmless from any suits, claims, demands or liabilities arising out of or by reason of any action taken by the Employer in compliance with the foregoing Union security provisions.

Article 7 Probationary Period

During the first six months of employment, employees may be terminated without recourse to the grievance procedure.

Article 8 Management Rights

The parties recognize that all rights to manage the Coalition remain with management unless specifically modified by this Agreement. In so doing, management will respect the spirit and intent of the Agreement. All management rights will be consistent with applicable laws and regulations.

Included among the rights inherently reserved to management but not limited to are: to determine priorities in deployment and assignment of staff; to determine how Coalition and LMP priorities will be achieved; to manage the staff consistent with the LMP, the LMP Trust and the purpose and goals of Coalition funding sources; the right to make a reduction in force; the right to direct the work; the right to set the budget for the Coalition; the right to hire, discipline, promote, and manage performance of the employees. It shall be the sole responsibility of management to communicate employee responsibilities to employees.

Article 9 Employee Rights

The Coalition is committed to treating all employees fairly and equitably and without discrimination, in all aspects of personnel management, in an atmosphere of integrity and free of prejudice.

Article 10 Decision Making and Flexibility

It is the intent of the parties to integrate the Union into the decision making bodies and forums of the organization, at every level, where decisions are made which could reasonably be expected to potentially impact Coalition staff. Decision making is not co-management but is full participation in decisions impacting bargaining unit employees of the Coalition.

In conjunction with the commitment to decision making is a commitment to flexibility in applying traditional work rules, such as seniority and temporary assignments outside of a particular classification. This will be accomplished through Interest Based Problem Solving and Consensus Decision Making. It is not the intent of the parties to undermine the principles of seniority and union jurisdiction or reduce the overall level of union membership. Coalition management is not looking for the right to make changes unilaterally, but expects the Union to work with them to address flexibility needs. The parties will meet, as needed, as far in advance as possible to address flexibility needs and/or concerns.

Article 11 Discipline, Corrective Action, and Issue Resolution

Issue Resolution

Issue Resolution (IR) is a system for raising and quickly resolving workplace issues using interest-based problem solving by those directly involved in the issue. It is intended to be non-adversarial and can be invoked in lieu of a grievance.

Generally, Interest based problem solving has the following process steps:

Identify the Issue(s)/Problem(s)
Identify separate, then mutual, Interests
Brainstorm Options
Create Solution(s)
Implement agreement(s)

The process of IR is available for any employee, the Union, and management to raise issues or concerns.

An Issue Resolution (IR) may be filed at any time for problems or issues that arise, either in the field or in the office. The IR should be filed with the Office Manager.

Corrective Action and Employee Discipline (Purpose and Definitions)

- A. The Employer's right to discipline or discharge employees shall only be exercised for just cause.
- B. Effective problem-solving processes are essential to the long term success of all Coalition employees. Solving workplace concerns quickly and by those most directly involved is essential to reducing conflict, grievances and contributes to better relations and a more constructive work environment. The discipline process will be more flexible to better meet the needs of employees and Coalition management. Basically, there will be two Levels to the process. Level one (1) is a non-disciplinary and joint discussion about possible concerns in performance, behavior, or misconduct. Level two (2) is discipline. These two Levels, combined with Issue Resolution process and the grievance procedure, form the basis of our problem solving approach in this agreement.
- C. The Coalition and Union agree that prior to a written warning being placed in an employee's file, their shall be an earnest attempt to resolve the performance issue(s) to the satisfaction of all parties on an informal and amicable basis. The supervisor shall notify the employee and the Union Representative of the need for a meeting. If the Coalition believes an action plan to be necessary, the parties will agree by consensus as to its content and duration. This step of Corrective Action may be repeated and shall be referred to as **Level I**. A Level I shall not be grievable and shall not be used in any future discipline that might occur. Any action other than **Level I** is considered discipline. (e.g., written warning, suspension, termination) This step of the Corrective Action procedure shall be referred to as **Level II**.

Article 12 Benefits

Employees will be provided with the following benefit package with no premium costs to the employees: pension, health insurance including vision and dental; long term disability; life insurance; retiree medical; domestic partner coverage; flexible spending account (medical and dependent care); employee assistance program and 401(k). All employees hired after the ratification of this agreement will receive health insurance through Kaiser Permanente, where available.

Employee contributions to the 401-K Plan will be matched at 100 percent up to one-half (.5) of one percent of the employee's annual salary, with a minimum annual contribution in accordance with the AFL-CIO.

The Coalition of Kaiser Permanente Unions will follow the AFL-CIO holiday schedule and inclement weather policy.

Article13 Paid Time Off (PTO)

PTO will be used for scheduled time off (PTO), and for short-term absences for whatever reason (including by way of example but not limitation, scheduled days off, illness, observance of holidays not recognized by the Coalition, etc.) except as provided in Article 14 Extended Sick Leave.

Employees shall be credited with the following number of days of PTO each calendar year:

Hire date through completion of 4 years of service	22 days
Start of 5 th year through completion of 9 years of service	27 days
Start of 10 th year through completion of 19 years of service	32 days
Start of 20 th year and thereafter	37 days

In 2020, probationary employees shall not accrue PTO during their probation period, and shall not be eligible for cashing out any PTO time if they separate from employment for any reason during the probationary period.

If during the probationary period the employee requests time off, the employee may request an advance on their anticipated PTO leave. If approved by the supervisor, the employee will be advanced PTO leave.

Upon completion of probationary period, an employee shall be credited vacation as follows:

- Employees who commenced employment after January 1st shall be credited with a pro-rated amount of their entitled PTO, based on their original date of hire; and
- Any leave advanced during the probation period will be deducted from the PTO award to which the employee later becomes entitled.

Beginning January 1, 2021, PTO will accrue for all employees on a pro-rated basis each pay period. The previous three paragraphs regarding probationary employees will sunset on January 1, 2021and probationary employees will accrue pro-rated PTO each pay period as all other employees.

Employees will not accrue PTO while on unpaid leave.

Employees who work a Coalition-recognized holiday with the approval of their supervisor will receive an additional day of PTO.

Employees will be allowed once a year to cash out up to 10 days of accrued PTO. Employees wishing to cash out PTO must submit a request on or before September 1 of the prior year, with the amount of PTO they intend to cash out and the pay period in which the cash out will be paid. Employees may request on or before September 1, 2014 for cash out during calendar year 2015. In order to ensure compliance with IRS and other applicable regulation, procedures for cash out will follow the policy established by Kaiser Permanente for cash out of vacation / PTO / ETO for KP employees.

Effective January 1, 2021, no employee will accrue more than seventy-five (75) days of PTO. Employees who have more than seventy five (75) days of PTO accrued as of the date of this agreement, will be able to cash out one half of the amount of days they have accrued over seventy five (75) prior to January 1, 2021, provided they schedule an equivalent amount of time off. This cash-out eligibility is in addition to the 10 days cash out described in the paragraph above.

PTO will only be cashed out on separation from employment or on submission of a timely request as outlined above.

With agreement from the CKPU, employees may voluntarily elect to donate accrued PTO to another Coalition employee experiencing a hardship on a 1:1 basis (one day of donated PTO entitles the receiving employee to one day of PTO regardless of any difference in pay rate between the donating and receiving employees).

Article 14 Extended Sick Leave

Employees will be eligible to use Extended Sick Leave (ESL) days as follows:

- Starting on the 4th consecutive day of absence due to illness (the first three days are charged to PTO.)
- From the first day of illness in the event of admission as a patient to a medical facility.
- From the first day of illness in the event of a scheduled outpatient procedure, with prior notice and document.

Employees will accrue 8 days of Extended Sick Leave on January 1 of each calendar year. Employees will not accrue ESL while on unpaid leave. On hiring, employees will be credited with a pro-rated amount of ESL for the calendar year in which they are hired.

Extended sick leave will carry over without limitation.

Unless otherwise mutually agreed as a result of the discussions provided for in the memorandum of understanding, Extended Sick Leave will not be cashed out.

When an employee qualifies for Short-term Disability coverage or Long-term Disability coverage, s/he may elect to use accrued ESL on a pro-rated basis to supplement the payments made under the disability coverage up to 100% of the employee's regular rate of pay. In the event ESL is exhausted, and the employee remains in disability status s/he may elect to use accrued PTO time on a pro-rated basis to supplement disability payments up to 100% of the employee's regular rate of pay.

When medical documentation is requested, the employee will provide a medical certificate/recommendation that the employee is incapable of performing work, which shall include the expected return to work date

When possible, employees will schedule their medical/dental appointments with the least impact on work operations.

Article 15 Wages

A) National Coordinators hired prior to February 1, 2020:

All incumbent national coordinators (including those who were previously Associate National Coordinators and were temporarily promoted) will be re-classified on February 1, 2020 as either a Program National Coordinator or a Field National Coordinator. The following salary scale shall govern these classifications for the duration of the Agreement. Employees will advance to the next step on the scale on their anniversary date:

Step 1 (start)	\$116, 028.64
Step 2 (1 year)	\$118,928.68
Step 3 (2 years)	\$121,901.00
Step 4 (3 years)	\$124,950.28
Step 5 (4 years)	\$128,073.92
Step 6 (5 years)	\$131,276.08
Step 7 (6 years)	\$134,557.80
Step 8 (7 years)	\$139,277.32

Incumbent employees (as of February 1, 2020) in these classifications will receive lump sum payments as follows:

February 1, 2020	1.5% of gross salary
August 1, 2020	1.5% of gross salary
February 1, 2021	1.5% of gross salary
August 1, 2021	1.5% of gross salary
February 1, 2022	1.5% of gross salary
August 1, 2022	1.5% of gross salary
February 1, 2023	1.5% of gross salary
August 1, 2023	1.5% of gross salary

B) <u>Program National Coordinators and Field National Coordinators hired after February 1, 2020:</u>

Employees will be hired into the following salary scale. Employees will advance to the next step on their anniversary date.

Step 1 (start)	\$83,000
Step 2 (1 year)	\$87,565
Step 3 (2 year)	\$92,381
Step 4 (3 year)	\$97,462
Step 5 (4 year)	\$102,822
Step 6 (5 year)	\$108,478
Step 7 (6 year)	\$114,444
Step 8 (7 year)	\$120,738

The salary scale will be increased as follows:

February 1, 2021	3%
February 1, 2022	3%
February 1, 2023	3%

Annual scales for this position will be reflected in Appendix A.

C) <u>Accountant:</u> Employees in this classification will be placed on the appropriate step of the following scale. Employees will advance to the next step on their anniversary date.

Step 1 (start)	\$95,936.88
Step 2 (1 year)	\$98,335.12
* ' * '	
Step 3 (2 years)	\$100,794.20
Step 4 (3 years)	\$103,342.20
Step 5 (4 years)	\$105,925.04
Step 6 (5 years)	\$108,543.76
Step 7 (6 years)	\$111,437.56
Step 8 (7 years)	\$114,224.24

The scale will be increased as follows:

February 1, 2020	3%
February 1, 2021	3%
February 1, 2022	3%
February 1, 2023	3%

Annual scales for this position will be reflected in Appendix B.

D) Meeting and Conference Planner

Step 1 (start)	\$100,051.64
Step 2 (1 year)	\$102,552.32
Step 3 (2 years)	\$105,115.92
Step 4 (3 years)	\$107,744.00
Step 5 (4 years)	\$110,438.12
Step 6 (5 years)	\$113,198.28

Step 7 (6 years) \$116,028.64

The scale will be increased as follows:

February 1, 2021 3% February 1, 2022 3% February 1, 2023 3%

Annual scales for this position will be reflected in Appendix A-C.

Article 16 Home Office

Employees who are required to perform work from home will be supplied with all necessary telecommunications equipment for business use.

Article 17 Travel Expenses

Employees will be reimbursed in accordance with the Coalition Business Travel Policy as negotiated.

For purposes of mileage reimbursement, all employees will be assigned a home base office of either a CKPU office, a Kaiser regional headquarters or a local union office. Home base office assignments will be made in a consistent manner within a region. New employees will be assigned a home base office upon hire. Expenses incurred for use of personal automobile for Coalition business shall be reimbursed at the IRS specified mileage rate.

Article 18 Employee Welfare

The employer will continue to provide an employee welfare payment which shall be one weeks salary each year. Such payment shall be made each December.

Article 19 Work Schedules

The nature of the work requires irregular and often unpredictable schedules. The staff members are considered FLSA exempt salaried employees who will manage their own time, subject to fulfilling program needs and operational requirements.

The work of Administrative Associates, who are paid overtime under FLSA have a more regular Monday-Friday work schedule. Such non-exempt personnel may at times work hours other than or in addition to a typical Monday-Friday work schedule. In such cases, the following provisions will apply:

- A. All overtime is strictly on a voluntary basis.
- B. When Administrative Associates are working on a priority project that must be completed that day it is expected that the Administrative Associate would exercise judgment to use overtime to complete the priority not to exceed 30 minutes.
- C. Except as provided in B above, any time greater than 30 minutes worked by Administrative Associates above and beyond the regularly scheduled hours in a single workday must be authorized in advance. Authorization may be provided verbally.
- D. All authorized work hours performed by Administrative Associates in excess of 35 hours within one calendar week will be compensated at 1.5 times their normal hourly rate.
- E. All authorized work hours performed by Administrative Associates on Sunday shall be compensated at two (2) times their normal hourly rate. All authorized work performed on Holidays shall be compensated for at two (2) times their normal hourly pay, in addition to his/her holiday pay.
- F. When Administrative Associates are required to travel to other locations outside the Washington, DC metropolitan area for meetings or conferences, the majority of travel time must take place during normal workday hours. If the majority of travel time cannot be arranged within the normal workday hours, the Administrative Associates are to consult with their supervisor on final arrangements. All authorized work hours performed by Administrative Associates while in such other meeting or conference locations that exceed 35 hours will be compensated at 1.5 times their hourly rate.
- G. There shall be no duplication or pyramiding of overtime/premium rates under these provisions.
- H. The time and attendance records will be submitted on a weekly basis by headquarters staff and a monthly basis by field staff and signed by the appropriate manager.

Article 20 Seniority, Vacancies, Reduction in Force, and Recall

A. Seniority

- a. Definition and application of seniority
 - (1) Bargaining Unit seniority shall be defined as continuous service with the Coalition from the date of hire. Bargaining unit seniority shall apply for the purpose of determining accrual of benefits.
 - (2) Classification seniority shall be defined below, and shall apply to vacation scheduling, reduction in force (RIF), recall, and filling of vacancies. There shall be two types of classification seniority:
 - (a) Office: all employees who are employed in the departments of administration and finance

(b) Field: all other employees (Directors, National Coordinators, National Program Coordinators, Senior National Coordinators)

B. Vacancies

- a. The CKPU will provide notice to the union prior to posting a position. Vacancy announcements and the job classifications will be distributed to current staff and the Union Steering Committee fourteen (14) days prior to considering external candidates.
- b. The parties recognize the unique nature of our work and that certain positions may require a unique set of skills and qualifications. Whenever necessary, the parties agree to engage in an interest based discussion about the need for flexibility in the filling of vacant positions, "Flexibility" shall be defined by reference in Article 10, entitled "Decision Making and Flexibility".
- c. If the parties cannot reach agreement on applying flexibility to the vacancy, then management may make a decision and the Union reserves the right to grieve that decision.

C. Reduction in Force (RIF)

In the event a Reduction in force (RIF) is being contemplated, the Coalition will engage the Union leadership in a discussion to explore potential alternatives to conducting a RIF. The intent is to reduce the potential negative impacts on both the organization and the employees (pre-bumping).

- a. In the event the Employer determines that a Reduction-In-Force (RIF) is necessary, the Employer will provide the Union with a minimum of 60 days written notice of its decision. During the notification period, representatives of the Employer and the Union will meet as soon as practically possible to review the need for such layoff(s) and to explore other options available to avoid such layoffs.
- b. When proceeding with a RIF, the Employer will first seek volunteers who will be considered on the basis of seniority for a "voluntary" separation. The most senior employee(s) who accepts such layoff will be granted the voluntary layoff if the remaining work can be reassigned and covered by the remaining employees within the affected classification.
- c. In the event no or insufficient volunteer(s) step forward, the principle of classification seniority shall govern, with the least senior employee in the classification being RIFed first within the impacted classification. Those bargaining unit members subject to a RIF shall be eligible for 10 additional days of unused PTO days added to their PTO bank which may only be used as part of termination benefits and may not be used as additional time off.

- d. If an employee in one classification is subject to a RIF, he/she can displace the least senior person in the same classification provided that they qualify for that position. Whenever necessary, the parties agree to engage in an interest based discussion about the need for flexibility in the filling of the displaced position. If the parties cannot reach agreement on applying flexibility to the vacancy, then management may make a decision and the Union reserves the right to grieve that decision.
- e. If there is more than one position in which an employee "qualifies", she/he may bump the least senior employee in the same classification from among those positions. "Qualifies" shall be defined as having the skills and knowledge and a demonstrated ability to perform the scope of the work for which they apply. The skills and knowledge may have been gained prior to her/his employment with the Coalition. There will be a three-month period from when they begin work in the new position to demonstrate adequate skills to succeed in the new position. If at the end of this three-month period they do not demonstrate adequate competency, they will not be allowed to displace another employee and will be RIFed.

D. Recall

- a. Employees who have been RIFed shall be allowed to assert their classification seniority to bid for vacancies for which they qualify, consistent with section 3.d. and 3.e. above.
- b. If at the end of three months they do not acclimatize, they will move into lay-off status. They may not bump another employee. The displaced employee may be recalled after three months if the former does not qualify. Alternatively, they may also exercise classification seniority rights if they meet the above criteria. Recall shall be on the basis of classification seniority.
- c. A laid off employee will be given preferential re-call rights, in order of seniority, to a vacant position for which they are qualified in the same classification for up to eighteen (18) months from the date of layoff. The employee must be willing to work in the region where the vacancy exists. The CKPU will notify the laid off employee and the union of the vacancy by email and telephone at the last email address and phone number that the employee has provided. The employee will have fourteen (14) days to respond to indicate if they are interested in exercising their recall rights.

E. Health insurance after RIF

Employees who are RIFed will be covered for full health and welfare benefits (through Employer payment of COBRA premiums) for a period of up to six (6) months from the date of layoff. If employment is not gained in the six (6) months, this period of coverage will be extended for an additional three (3) months.

Article 21 Grievance Procedure

The parties agree to strive to solve all problems at the lowest level possible. Effective problem solving is a sign of a mature and committed organization.

- 1. Grievances shall be first raised with the employee's immediate supervisor. The parties agree that a grievance form is available to the Union and employees and all are encouraged to use it. The employee must file the grievance within 30 calendar days of the date the employee became aware of the issue or event to be grieved.
- 2. If the incident is considered to be egregious by the Coalition, the Union may file the grievance with the executive director in order to expedite the process.
- 3. Upon receipt of the step 1 grievance by the management, a meeting to discuss the grievance will be scheduled within 10 calendar days.
- 4. If the step 1 grievance is not resolved, management will provide a written response to the step 1 grievance within 10 calendar days.
- 5. The Union and employee will have 10 calendar days from receipt of the response to file at step 2. (Executive Director)
- 6. Upon receipt of the step 2 grievance, management will schedule a meeting within 10 calendar days to discuss the grievance.
- 7. If the step 2 grievance is not resolved, management will provide a response within 10 calendar days.
- 8. The Union will have 10 calendar days from receipt of the management's step 2 response to invoke arbitration.
- 9. Time limits may be extended only by mutual agreement and in writing.
- 10. If the Union fails to meet any of the time limits to process any grievance, the grievance will be terminated.
- 11. If management fails to meet any of the time limits to process any grievance, the Union may elevate the grievance to the next step or invoke arbitration.
- 12. In all instances, the Union will notify management when the Union invokes arbitration.

Article 22 Pre-Tax Shelter Plan for Medical and Child Care Expenses

The employer agrees to jointly investigate the rules and regulations necessary to set up pre-tax shelter plans so that employees can contribute pre-tax dollars for health care and childcare expenses. If the establishment of such accounts is not unduly burdensome, the employer will establish such accounts for employee contributions.

Article 23 Temporary Employment

Temporary administrative staff employment is limited to 90 days, except when covering for a leave of absence. CKPU will provide the union at least two (2) weeks' notice of a temporary hire where practical.

Article 24 Employee Development, Training, and Education

- 1. The parties agree that a process should be in place in order for staff to access any available funding for employee development, training and education. The process will be communicated to employees through e-mail and staff meetings.
- 2. Requests to attend education and/or training opportunities will be evaluated by the following criteria:

The education/training will improve or enhance job performance

The education/training will provide skills necessary to perform their current job

The employee will benefit from the education/training

The education/training will provide an opportunity for advancement

3. If an employee is interested in an education/training opportunity, they should discuss the opportunity with their immediate supervisor. Whenever possible, the employee will make the request in writing, at least 60 days in advance of the beginning of the course(s)/class(es), to the Director, Human Resources and Administrative Operations. The request should include the following:

A description of the course(s)/class(es) to be taken. (and course(s)/class(es)

Brochure/website, if available)

The schedule for the course(s)/class(es)

The cost of the course(s)/class(es)

A brief description of how the course(s)/class(es) meets some or all of the criteria above.

All requests will be submitted to the Executive Director for approval.

- 4. A supervisor may make recommendations for employee development, education and training. The supervisor will discuss the opportunity for education/training with the employee and work together to schedule the education/training opportunity. The supervisor and employee should jointly submit the request as described in (3) above.
- 5. Employees will provide the Director, Human Resources and Administrative Operations with evidence of successful course completion. (certificate/certification/or other official notification).

Article 25 Leaves

Unless otherwise agreed upon, five days of paid leave will be provided for and jury duty.

Upon the birth or adoption of a child, an employee will be entitled to a paid leave with benefits of up to six weeks, and an additional unpaid leave without benefits for up to six months.

Unpaid leaves of absence without benefits may also be granted for urgent and substantial personal reasons for up to six months.

Employees shall be allowed five (5) days' compassionate leave without loss of pay in the event of death in the immediate family, which shall be limited to spouse or person with whom the employee immediately beforehand shared a residence and had maintained a committed relationship for at least six (6) months, son, daughter, mother, or father. Employees shall be allowed three (3) days' compassionate leave without loss of pay in the event of death in the immediate family which shall be limited to mother-in-law father-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, grandmother, grandfather including spouses' grandparents), grandchild, stepmother, stepfather, foster parent, sister, brother, or any other blood relative living under the same roof as the employee. Employees shall be allowed one (1) day of compassionate leave with pay for sister-in-law or brother-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, or nephew. In addition, necessary time off for travel purposes as measured by the fastest practical mode of transportation shall be granted upon request of the employee, when, in the Employer's judgment, such additional time is warranted. Employees shall be allowed on (1) day of compassionate leave with pay for the death of a coworker. For the purposes of this Section, a domestic partner's relatives shall be treated as spousal equivalents.

Article 26 Commute Benefit

Headquarters employees will be offered public transportation commuting costs or parking up to the limits of IRS regulations.

Article 27 Use of Equipment and Internet

Employees may utilize Coalition provided computers, internet and telecommunications devices in accordance with the e-mail and internet usage policy.

Article 28 Term

This Agreement is effective as of February 1, 2020 and shall continue in effect through January 31, 2024. It shall be automatically renewed and extended from year to year thereafter unless either party serves notice in writing upon the other party not less than ninety days prior to the end of its then term of its desire to terminate or amend this Agreement. The parties agree that this Agreement is best negotiated after the ratification of the CKPU National Agreement with Kaiser and will endeavor to reach an extension agreement in the event that the National Agreement ratification is delayed.

Article 29 Living Agreement

Should either party to this Agreement desire to amend the Agreement, the other party will enter discussions of the proposed amendment with the intent to reach mutual agreement; however neither party shall be required to agree to any modifications.

For the Employer:	For the Union:
Greg Pullman	John Kolodny John Kolodny (Feb 12, 2020) John Kolodny
Anissa Dixon Anissa Dixon	Cheryl Gonzalez (Feb 13, 2020) Cheryl Gonzalez
Tamara Rubyn Tamara Rubyn	LeAnda Russell LeAnda Russell
	Christopher A Parker Christopher A Parker (Feb 12, 2020) Chris Parker
	Cet Parks Cet Parks (Feb 19, 2020) Cet Parks

APPENDIX A				
	Program/Field National	Coordinators Hired af	ter February 1. 2020	1
	February 1, 2020	February 1, 2021	February 1, 2022	February 1, 2023
Step 1 [start]-	83,000.00	85,490.00	88,054.70	90,696.34
Step 2 [1 year]-	87,565.00	90,191.95	92,897.71	95,684.64
Step 3 [2 year]-	92,381.00	95,152.43	98,007.00	100,947.2
Step 4 [3 year]-	97,462.00	100,385.86	103,397.44	106,499.30
Step 5 [4 year]-	102,822.00	105,906.66	109,083.86	112,356.3
Step 6 [5 year]-	108,478.00	111,732.34	115,084.31	118,536.8
Step 7 [6 year]-	114,444.00	117,877.32	121,413.64	125,056.0
Step 8 [7 year]-	120,738.00	124,360.14	128,090.94	131,933.67
APPENDIX B				
		Accountant		
	February 1, 2020	February 1, 2021	February 1, 2022	February 1, 2023
Step 1 [start]-	98,814.99	101,779.44	104,832.82	107,977.80
Step 2 [1 year]-	101,285.17	104,323.73	107,453.44	110,677.04
Step 3 [2 year]-	114,118.03	117,541.57	121,067.81	124,699.8
Step 4 [3 year]-	106,442.47	109,635.74	112,924.81	116,312.5
Step 5 [4 year]-	109,102.79	112,375.87	115,747.15	119,219.5
Step 6 [5 year]-	111,800.07	115,154.07	118,608.70	122,166.9
Step 7 [6 year]-	114,780.69	118,224.11	121,770.83	125,423.9
Step 8 [7 year]-	117,650.97	121,180.50	124,815.91	128,560.39
APPENDIX C				
	Meetir	ng and Conference Plan	ner	
	February 1, 2020	February 1, 2021	February 1, 2022	February 1, 2023
Step 1 [start]-	100,051.64	103,053.19	106,144.78	109,329.13
Step 2 [1 year]-	102,552.32	105,628.89	108,797.76	112,061.69
Step 3 [2 year]-	105,115.92	108,269.40	111,517.48	114,863.0
Step 4 [3 year]-	107,744.00	110,976.32	114,305.61	117,734.7
Step 5 [4 year]-	110,438.12	113,751.26	117,163.80	120,678.7
Step 6 [5 year]-	113,198.28	116,594.23	120,092.06	123,694.8
Step 7 [6 year]-	116,028.64	119,509.50	123,094.78	126,787.6
Step 8 [7 year]-	·			•

Side Letter of Agreement

The parties recognize that the Coalition of Kaiser Permanente Unions and the Kaiser Labor Management Partnership are in a time of transition. In the midst of this transition, the parties have agreed to merge multiple classifications into two classifications that are driving the field and program work of the Coalition. Re-aligning assignments based on new priorities, re-distributing the work previously done by other classifications and phasing out work that will no longer continue will require a thoughtful, interactive process. The CKPU will consult affected bargaining unit employees throughout this process to gain their input. The parties understand that management has the final decision making right on assigning work.

For the CKPU:

Date:

For the CWA-WBNG Local 32035:

Date: